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15RFP001B-BR Inmate Medical Services
Addendum No. 4

This Addendum forms a part of the contract documents and modifies the original RFP
documents as noted below:

. Question: So bidders can apply the correct timeframe to their proposed contract
transition/implementation plans, please provide the following dates:

a. Fulton County’s (“the County’s”) targeted award date for the contract
b. The County’s targeted start date for the contract
Answer: The answer to both questions above is found in addendum #1

. Question: Please provide a copy of the current health services contract for the Fulton County
Jail ("FCJ"), including any exhibits, attachments, and amendments. Answer: You must submit an
open records request to the Fulton County Purchasing Department. Go to the Fulton County
website and then go to the Purchasing and Contract Compliance Department website, click on
Open Records Request, and follow the directions

. Question: Please provide the names and participation levels (dollars spent) of all small/minority/
woman/veteran-owned subcontractors used under the current health care contract. Answer: An
open Record Request must be filed for that information.

. Question: What is the threshold level/compliance percentage for each of the performance
measures listed in RFP §3.3.M?

Answer:

A) 100% of inmates who are not released (bond or signature bond)
B) 100% of inmates

C) 100%, except women inmates-14 days for the women

D) 100%

. Question: Please provide (by year) the amounts and reasons for any paybacks, credits, and/or
liquidated damages the County has assessed against the incumbent Service Provider over the
term of the current contract. Answer: You must contact the Fulton County Finance Department
for that information.

. Question: What is the current status of each of these federal consent orders? Answer: Foster-
Closed, Harper-Open.
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7. Question: With regard to lawsuits pertaining to inmate health care at the FCJ, frivolous or
otherwise:

a. How many have been filed against the County and/or the incumbent Service Provider in the
last three years?

b. How many have been settled in that timeframe?
Answer: You must contact the Fulton County Legal Department for that information.

8. Question: For each of the four (4) facilities listed in RFP §1.3, please provide the following
information.

a. Mission, e.g., intake, pre-release, disabled inmates, etc.
b. Gender of inmate housed
c. Level/acuity of health services the Service Provider is expected to supply

Answer:

1. The Fulton County Main Jail-Intake facility with main Medical Unit with Administrative staff,
infirmary (male and female medical and mental health), general x-ray machine, dialysis
unit, chronic care and dental unit.

2. Alpharetta Annex-General population Fulton County (men and women)and municipal police
departments (men and women),outpatient care, low acuity

3. Union City Annex-Houses all County Jail women and Union City Police Dept. arrests of all
security levels, chronic care (medical and mental) general population

4. Marietta Annex- General population, outpatient care, low acuity

9. Question: Please provide two years’ worth of historical data on the number of intakes at the
FCJ.

Answer: 2014 - 27,370 bookings
2013 - 29,878 bookings

10.Question: We understand the FCJ is currently accredited by the National Commission on
Correctional Health Care (“NCCHC”). Can the County please provide the following information?

a. Most recent NCCHC accreditation date for the facility.

b. Copy of most recent accreditation audit report for the facility.
Answer: On-site audit took place in 2014

The Report is attached to this addendum.

11.Question: With regard to the background investigations described in RFP §3.3.D.2, who is
financially responsible for paying for this service: the County or the Service Provider? Answer:
The County.

12.Question: With regard to drug testing for potential employees, does the County have any
requirements on the testing methodology, e.g., saliva, urinalysis, etc.? Answer: No.

13.Question: Will the County allow “grandfathered” credentialing for incumbent professional staff
already employed or contracted by the current Service Provider? Answer: Not available.
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14.Question: Please confirm that the time health services staff members spend in orientation, in-
service training, and continuing education classes will count toward the hours required by the
contract. Answer: Yes.

15.Question: Please provide an inventory of medical equipment (e.g., blood pressure cuffs,
ultrasound, x-ray machines, etc.) currently in use at the FCJ facilities and identify which equipment
will be available for use by the selected Service Provider. Answer: This will take place at the
time of transition of the selected vendor.

16.Question: RFP §3.3.G.22 states, “If additional or replacement equipment and instruments are
required by the Service Provider during the term of this agreement, the Service Provider will
purchase such items at its own cost.” Please confirm the Service Provider will retain ownership of
such equipment at the expiration of the contract. Answer: This will take place at the time of
transition of the selected vendor.

17.Question: How does the health unit staff at the FCJ currently access the Internet: through a
facility network or through connectivity provided by the incumbent Service Provider? Who is
financially responsible for such Internet access?

Answer: The vendor is responsible for the provision of all connectivity. It must be separate from
the County's system.

18.Question: What is the County’s preference with regard to hosting the Electronic Health Record:
(a) hosted within the County data center; or (b) hosted by an external, third party service?
Answer: Hosted by external third party.

19.Question: With regard to telehealth at the FCJ:

a. Please list the (a) type, (b), frequency, (c) volume, and (d) location of all telehealth clinics
currently being conducted for the FCJ inmate population.

b. Is there any telehealth equipment currently in place that will remain and be available for the
new Service Provider? Please list and describe this equipment.

c. Please confirm the Service Provider will be permitted to utilize the County’s
network/infrastructure to supply connectivity for the telehealth program.

Answer: Schedules and times will be provided to the selected vendor. The telehealth equipment

in place will remain. It will retain its current connectivity.

20.Question: Please identify with whom the incumbent Service Provider subcontracts to provide
laboratory services. Answer: The selected vendor is expected to identify the laboratory vendor
that it chooses to utilize.

21.Question: How are optometry services currently provided: (a) onsite, with permanent County-
owned equipment; (b) onsite, through mobile optometry (PLEASE IDENTIFY VENDOR); or (c)
offsite?
Answer: Inmates in need of prescription glasses are sent ofthe Eye Clinic at Grady Hospital and
the vendor is financially responsible for having glasses made to the prescription.
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22.Question: How are dialysis services currently provided: (a) onsite, with permanent County-
owned equipment; (b) onsite, with vendor/subcontractor-owned equipment (PLEASE IDENTIFY
VENDOR); or (c) offsite? Answer: On-site with a subcontractor.

23.Question: Please provide the current Sick Call schedule (days of week and timeframes) for each
FCJ facility. Answer: Monday through Friday day shift 7a to 3p.

24.Question: With regard to RFP §3.3.G.5.b, can a Staff Physician also fulfill the requirement to be
“available onsite 24 hours a day, 7 days a week”? Answer: Correction: A mid-level provider or
MD to be available onsite 24 hours a days, 7 days a week.

25.Question: Also with regard to RFP §3.3.G.5.b, please clarify whether “available onsite” means
(a) on-call and available to return to the facility upon being informed of such a need by onsite
personnel; or (b) scheduled for an onsite shift. Answer: Available on-site" means scheduled for
on-site shift.

26.Question: With regard to the list of clinics to be held onsite as per RFP §3.3.G.7.a:
a. Are all of these clinics currently being conducted onsite?

b. If “yes,” please provide the name and contact information for the physician providing the clinic
encounters.

c. If “yes,” what is the (a) frequency and (b) number of inmates enrolled in each clinic?
Answer: All but Podiatry services "
Contact information is not available.
Time and frequency of clinics will be determined at the time of transition with the
selected vendor.

27.Question: Please identify the number, type, and timeframes of any backlogs (e.g., chronic care
clinics, offsite referrals, dental encounters, etc.) that currently exist at the FCJ sites. Answer:
None.

28.Question: Do any of the FCJ facilities have a mental health unit, or beds assigned to mental
health patients? If “yes,” please describe the unit(s), e.g., number of beds, level of acuity the unit
handles, etc.
Answer: The mental health infirmary is in the main Jail. Involuntary medicating is not performed
at the Jail. 26 male beds. 15 beds split between medical and mental health for the women.

29.Question: How many medication carts will the County make available for the use of the
incoming vendor?
Answer: None. The selected vendor is responsible for medication carts.

30.Question: Please provide copies of the following documents.
a. The drug formulary currently in use at the FCJ
b. The laboratory formulary currently in use at the FCJ

c. A current pharmacy/formulary management report
Answer: A) Not available.
B) Not available. c) Not available.
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31.Question: Please confirm the incumbent FCJ Service Provider utilizes a “fax and fill’ pharmacy
program, as the RFP references “the Service Provider's pharmacist” in §3.3.1.3—but we see no
Pharmacist FTEs in the minimum staffing plan. Answer: Correct, pharmacy services are the
vendor's responsibility to determine how they are going to be provided.

32.Question: On average, what percentage of FCJ inmates are prescribed psychotropic drugs each
month? Answer: 30-35%

33.Question: What is the average number of inmates receiving pharmaceutical treatment each
month for the following conditions?

a. Hepatitis C
b. HIV/AIDS

c. Hemophilia
Answer: A) None.
B) 160 to 170 per month

C) 4 times a year.

34.Question: With regard to the treatment of HIV/AIDS:

a. Overthe past four years, what is the average monthly number of inmates receiving
pharmaceutical treatment for these conditions?

b. How many inmates are currently in the FCJ HIV/AIDS specialty care clinic?

c. In each of the last four years, how much has been spent on drugs for the treatment of FCJ
inmates with these conditions?

Answer:

A) 80 to 90 per month, currently.

B) Approximately 170 per month, currently.
C) Not available.

35.Question: Does the FCJ currently have any type of 340B discount program in place for high-
priced medications? Answer: No.

If “yes,” please provide the following information:

a. What entity serves as the federally designated covered entity?

b. What entity serves as the 340B contract pharmacy?

c. What classes of medications are currently included under the FCJ 340B program?

36.Question: With regard to RFP §3.3.J, please provide a detailed description of the current FCJ
discharge planning/re-entry process.
Answer: The discharge planning process mirrors the requirements for the NCCHC standard. See
NCCHC Standards.
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37.Question: What is the average number of FCJ staff receiving each of the following services
(reference RFP §3.3.G.8)?

a. Annual tuberculin skin testing and referral

b. Tetanus antitoxin post exposure as indicated

c. Hepatitis B vaccine series

d. Post-exposure testing and prophylaxis for staff
Answer: None.

38.Question: Please provide two years’ of monthly statistical data for each of the following
categories.

a. Number of ambulance transports
b. Number of dialysis treatments

Answer: A) 11 per month average, currently
B) average 10 per month, currently

39.Question: Please provide annual spend amounts for the past four years for the following
categories.

a. Total pharmaceutical expenditures
b. Laboratory services
c. X-ray services

Answer: Not available. The contract does not require the vendor to report its costs. The vendor is
required to provide all services at the contracted amount regardless of cost

40.Question: With regard to §3.3.G.7.c and §3.3.G.7.e, the RFP requires the Service Provider to
“make arrangements for” the transportation of inmates to a County or state health care provider.

Please clarify who is financially responsible for the cost of such transportation. Answer: The cost
ofthe transportation is the County's responsibility.

41.Question: Please also clarify who is financially responsible for the cost of emergency
transportation. Answer: The County is responsible for emergency transportation.

42.Question: Has the incumbent Service Provider been financially responsible for the cost of any
offsite services under the existing contract? Answer: No.

If “yes,” please provide the following information.

a. Number of offsite encounters for which the incumbent Service Provider has been financially
responsible

b. Total cost of offsite encounters for which the incumbent Service Provider has been financially
responsible
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c. Diagnoses relating to the offsite encounters for which the incumbent Service Provider has
been financially responsible

d. Reason the care was not paid for the County

43.Question: Please confirm that under the new contract, the Service Provider will not be financially
responsible for any of the following services.

a. Neonatal or newborn care after actual delivery

Elective or mandated abortion

Cosmetic surgery, including breast reduction

Sex change surgery (including treatment or related cosmetic procedures)

Contraceptive care including elective vasectomy (or reversal of such) and tubal ligation (or
reversal of such)

Extraordinary and/or experimental care

g. Elective care (care which if not provided would not, in the opinion of the Medical Director,
cause the inmate’s health to deteriorate or cause definite and/or irreparable harm to the
inmate’s physical status)

h. Autopsies

i. Any organ (or other) transplant or related costs, including, but not limited to labs, testing,
pharmaceuticals, pre- or post-op follow-up care, or ongoing care related to a transplant, etc.

j.  Medications for the treatment of bleeding disorders, including, but not limited to Factor VIII and
IX

® oo o

—h

Answer: The selected vendor will not be financially responsible for any of the listed services,
except j. Bleeding disorders, including, but not limited to, Factor VIl and IX.

44.Question: After reviewing the “Technical Proposal Format and Content” instructions in RFP
§3.4, we do not see where bidders are supposed to address each of the clinical service
requirements listed in §3.3 Scope of Work.

a. Does the County want bidders to address each “Scope of Work” item?

b. If “yes,” under which tab does the County wish bidders to place this narrative?
Answer: A) Yes

B) Presentation is at the discretion of the vendor as long as all items are addressed.

45.Question: The requirement in RFP §3.4 (Project Team Qualifications) to provide resumes for the
bidder's proposed Medical Director, Mental Health Director, Health Services Administrator, and
Director of Nursing gives the incumbent Service Provider a distinct and unfair advantage. Other
bidders will not hire specific individuals to lead a correctional health care project prior to being
awarded the business. Therefore, in the interest of maintaining a fair and equitable solicitation
process, and providing a level playing field for all bidders, will the County accept job descriptions
in lieu of actual names and resumes? Answer: Yes.

46.Question: Please confirm the County is willing to consider other innovative and cost-saving
alternate models and programs (in addition to the staffing alt discussed in the RFP), as long as
bidders also provide an RFP-compliant base bid. Answer: No. Only an alternate cost.
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47.Question: The instructions in RFP §3.1.2 (pertaining to the number of copies the County
requires for each component of the proposal) are somewhat ambiguous. Please confirm all
originals must be in paper format; while all copies are to be electronic, on CDs. Answer: All
originals for all documents are in paper format. The only copies that are in CD format are the five
copies of the technical proposal. For the other documents (Contract Compliance, Financial
Information, Cost Proposal) the copies are in paper format.

48.Question: If this is not the case, please address the following questions.

a. TECHNICAL PROPOSAL.: Is the “original” in paper format or on CD?
CONTRACT COMPLIANCE EXHIBITS: Is the “original” in paper format or on CD?
CONTRACT COMPLIANCE EXHIBITS: Is the “copy” in paper format or on CD?
FINANCIAL INFORMATION: Is the “original” in paper format or on CD?
FINANCIAL INFORMATION: Is the “copy” in paper format or on CD?

COST PROPOSAL: Is the “original” in paper format or on CD?
COST PROPOSAL: Is the “copy” in paper format or on CD?
Answer: Please see the answer to question no. 47.

@"pooy

49.Question: Please indicate the order of precedence among the solicitation documents (e.g., the
RFP, initial responses to questions, subseguent responses to questions, exhibits and
attachments, etc.) so that in case of contradictory information among these materials, bidders
know which of the conflicting data sets to use to create their narratives and calculate their prices.
Answer: Vendors have until April 30, 2015 to ask for clarification of documents.

58. Question: | was supposed to attend the pre-bid conference meeting that took place yesterday.
However, | went to wrong address printed of cover page of RFP and failed to look at page
indicating correct location. Nonetheless, can you tell me if our company can still participate in this
proposal? Or if any vendors participating yesterday may be looking for an EHR partner?
Answer: Yes, you can submit a proposal and the sign in sheet has been uploaded to our website. Yc
can call any of the vendors to ask if they require partner.
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The undersigned proposer acknowledges receipt of this addendum by returning one (1)
copy of this form with the proposal package to the Department of Purchasing & Contract
Compliance, Fulton County Public Safety Building, 130 Peachtree Street, Suite 1168,
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 by the RFP due date and time of Tuesday, May 12, 2015, 11:00
A.M.

This is to acknowledge receipt of Addendum No. 4, day of
2015.

Legal Name of Bidder

Signature of Authorized Representative

Title
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Fulton County Jail, GA
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The National Commission on Corractional Health Care is dedicatad to improving the quality of
corractional health services and halping correctional facilities provide sffective and efficiant
care. NCCHC grew out of a program begun at the American Medical Association in the 1970s,
The standards are NMCCHC's racommeandead requiraments for the proper managament of 2
carractional heaith sarvices delivary systam. Thase standards have helped correctional facilities
imprave the health of their inmates and the communities to which they return, increass the
sfficiency of their health services delivery, sirengthen their arganizational effectiveness, and
reduce their risk of adverse patient cutcomes and legal judgments.

On August 10-14, 2014, NCCHC conducted its review for continued accreditation of this facility.
We commend the facility staff for their professional conduct, assistance, and candor during the
coursa of our review. The NCCHC's ieam of experienced certified correctional health '
professionals utilized NCCHC’s 2008 Standards for Heaith Services in Jails as the basis of its
healih services analysis. This report focuses primarily on issues in need of correction or
enhancemeant. It is most sffective when raad in conjunction with the Standards manual. The
information in this repert is privileged and cenfidential and is intended for the sole use of

parsons addressed.

There are 35 essential standards; 35 are applicable to this facility and 23 (868%) were found to
oe in compliance. One hundrad percent of the applicable essential standards must ba met. Our

findings include:

Essential Standards Not in Compliance

J-A-01 Access fo Cars

J-C-04 Health Training for Corractional Officers
J-C-05 Medication Administration Training
J-D-01 Pharmaceutical Operations

J-E-92 Receiving Screening

J-E-04 Initial Health Assessment

J-E-06 Oral Care

J-E-07 NMonemergency Health Care Reguests and Services
J-E-12 Continuity of Care During Incarceration
J-G-01 Chronic Disease Services

J-G-02 Patients with Special Health Needs
J-G-03 Infirmary Cara

Essential Standards Not Apglicable
None

There are 32 important standards; 31 are applicable to this facility and 27 (87%) were found to
be in compliance. Eighty-five percent or more of the applicable important standards must be
mat. Our findings include:

Important Standards Not in Compliance
J-A-08 Privacy of Care

J-B-03 Staff Safety

J-E-09 Segregatzd Inmates

J-E-10 Patient Escort
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Important Standard Not Applicable
J-C-08 Health Care Liaison

Althaugh the facility was surveyed under the 2008 Standard's for Health Services in Jails, the
necessary cerrective action that is described in this repart reflects requirements of the 2014
Standards for Health Services in Jails.

Decision: On November 21, 2014, NCCHC's Accreditation Committee withdraw tha Fulton
County Jail from the accreditation program.
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l. Facility Profile

Type of Facility: Jail

Total Admissions: 30,132
Design-rated capacity: 2,648 main jail
Average daily pepulation: 2,509

Average daily intake: 84
Satellites; 3

Satsllite average daily popuiation:

1) Sateilite A 23

2) Saizlliie B 8

3) Satellite C 224

Description of Facility

This county jail is located in a large, southern city. It was originally constructed in 1984 to
address overcrowding in a local jail system and overcrowding centinues to be a prablem in this
county. The main building is comprised of two towers, Morth and South, which are connectad by
corridors. The north tower has seven floors and the south tower has six; each floor is divided
into sight sections, one of which is an epen day room and one is an indoor recreation area.
Each fioor alse has a medical examination room. Intake is part of the newer construction. This is
a large open bay area surrounded by cells and multiple occupancy tanks.

One satellite is located about a quarter of a mile away, in the same compound. [t houses only
adult males in dermitory-style housing. One housing unit contains inmates who are enrolled in
the dog program to train shelter rescue animals for either adogtion or to become therapy dogs.
The other hausing unit houses male inmates referred by the courts for the “Second Chance”
pragram. These inmates have problems with substance abuse and have had relapse issues.
Another satellite, approximatzly 20 miles away, houses the famale population and local
community offenders. The women's areas are divided into two housing units, each consisting of
four sections. Amenities include a medical area, kifchen, gym, suidoor recreation and a
freatment zone, as well as a lock-down unit, and housing for inmates with mental health issues.

A total of 06 carrectional afficers {(COs) arg scheduled on duty during three work shifts (202 on
gach of the three shifts).

Inmate Population Characteristics

On the day of the survey, there were 2,638 aduits (2,408 males, and 230 females).

Facility's Heaith Services

Health services have been pravided by a correctional care contractor since July of 2011.
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Staffing

Healh staff ars on site 24 hours a day, seven days a week, At the time of the survay, there
were 128 full-iime and several part-time staff; therg were 14 full-timie and several part-time
vacancias as well.

il. Survey Method

Wetoured the clinic area, inmate housing areas, and segregation. We reviewed 1256 health
records; policies and procedures; provider licenses; administrative, health staff, and continuous
guality improvement (CQI} meeting minutes; job descriptions; statistical and environmental
inspection raporis: and health services personnel and CO training records. We also interviewed
the chief, responsible physician, health services administrator (HSA), other health, dental and
mental health staff, administrative staff, four sergeants, the intake officer, sight COs, and 47
inmates selected at random,

. Survey Findings and Comments

. __A. GOVERNANCE AND ADMINISTRATION

The standards in this section address the foundation of a functioning correctional health services systam
and the interactions between custody and health services autherities. Any model of organization is

' considerad valid, provided the outcame is an integrated system of health cara in which meadical orders are

carried out and documented appropriately and the results are monitorad as indicated. Policies and
procedures are o include site-specific operating guidelines.

Standard Specific Findings

J-A-01 Access to Care (E). Inmates are assessed $5 for self-initiated services. Therais no
charge for mental heaith services, medications, or any services required by the standards. All
inmates receive care regardless of their ability to pay.

However, inmates do not aiways have access to health care. Due fo the lack of security staff,
patients ars not seen by a qualified clinician or are able to raceive care in a timely manner as
ordered for their sarious madical, mental health, and dental needs. The last court monitor's
report (related to the consent decree) stated that only 63% of scheduled clinic visits were seen
as scheduled in the first quarter and 41% of scheduled clinic visits were seen as scheduled in
the second quarter, The standard is not met.

Corrective action is reguired. The facility should undertake a comprehensive review of
the delivery of health cara services and allocation of custody staff to ensure inmates
have access to care to meet their sericus medical, dental and mental health neads. As
described in this report, the current method is inadequate. Access to care means that, in
a timely manner, a patient can be seen by a clinician, be given a professional clinical
judgment, and receive care that is ordered. This standard is the principle on which all
MCCHC standards are based. Having an understaffed, underfunded or poorly organized
system with the result that it is not able ta deliver appropriate and timely cara for
patients’ serious health needs reprasents an unreasonable barrier to care and must be
avoided. The facility should carefully review and improve sach step of aceassing health
care in the facility. Problems identified should then be addressed and prograss
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maonitered. In order to receive aceraditation, verification that this standard has been met
is required.

J-A-02 Responsible Health Authority (E). The responsible health authority (RHA) is the
correctional heaith care contractor, whose on-site representative is the full-time health services
administrator. Clinical judgments rest with a designated, full-tima responsible physician. The

standard is met.

J-A-03 Medical Autonomy (E). Qualified health care professionals make decisions regarding
inmates’ serious medical, dental, and mental health needs in the inmates' best interasts. We
noted goed cooperation befween custody and medical staff mostly on the administrative level.
Administrative decisions are coordinated, if necessary, with clinical neads so that patient care is

not jeopardized. The standard is met.

J-A-04 Administrative Meetings and Reports (E). The chief and responsible health authority
meeat monthly to discuss administrative matters with the responsible physician, mental heaith
director, dentist, dirsctor of nurses, x-ray technician, medical records dirsctor, cusiody staff, and
reprasentatives from the commissary, maintenance, and food services depariments. Health staff
meets monthly to discuss health services operations. Attendees include the responsible health
authority and nurses. Medical, nursing and mental health stafi meet weekly in the care
meetings, during which infirmary and acute care patients are discussed and treatment plans

farmulated. The standard is met.

J-A-05 Policies and Procedures (E). The health services policy manual is site-specific. The
RHA and responsible physician last reviewad it on January 21, 2014. The standard is met.

J-A-06 Continuous Quality Improvement Program (E). The comprshensive quality
improvement program moniters major aspects of health care through a muitidisciplinary
committee that meeis at least quarterly. The membership includes the responsible physician,
HSA, infectious disease nurse, medical records director, dentist, director of nurses, x-ray
technician, mental health director, pharmacy technician and custody representation. In 2014, a
process study examinad detoxification withdrawal; after some changes to documentation, a
decrsass in hospitalization was svident. A second study examined nawly arriving mental health
patients to ensure mental health staff were prescribed the necessary medication within 24 hours
of admission. An ouicome study examined HIV patients in light of an existing consent
agreement ragarding their care; testing for hepatitis was inciuded and a hepatitis panel was

successfully added to all HIV patients.

In 2013, process studies focused on the sick call process (changed from nursing staff to an all
provider process) and on mental health discharge planning to ensure sufficient medications and
a list of community providers were being distributed. Outcome studies focused on improving
diabetic laboratory results and on improving HIV patients’ outcomes. Of the 12 patients who
were traatad for several months, five showed a significant decrease in viral load.

In 2012, one process study examined nurse sick call, with an emphasis on triage; a new satellite
was opened; the nurses wers sent to the satellits for staffing, and it was decided to changs the
process to provider sick call. Another process study examined providing bridge medication to
new admissions on specific blood thinners. An cutcome study examined the re-entry program;
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the patienis were followed after discharge and a reduction in hospitalization and reincarceration
was noted.

The responsible ohysician is involved in the CQI program, such as identifying thresholds,
interprating data, and problem selving. The CQI program is also reviewed annually forits
effectiveness. The standard is met.

J-A-07 Emergency Response Plan (E). Disaster drills have been held annually: In 2014, a
three-day ice storm resulted in a state of emergency in that, due to icy reads, medical
operations wers on an emergency-only basis; 33 patients were brought to the main medical
services arga to accommodate the limited staffing; medications wers packaged to facilitate
distribution during this situation. In 2013, several inmates were invelved in a fight and had fo be
assassed and traated at the urgent care clinic. In 2012, a firs rasulted in burns to three people,
and a pregnant inmats going into labor. Man-down events have bean held annually an each
shift. The standard is met.

J-A-08 Communication on Patients’ Health Needs (E). Communication betwesn designated
correctional and health services staff with regard to inmates’ special health needs occurs both
verbally and electronically. Health services staff attend many meetings with security to facilitate
an exchange of information. The standard is met.

J-A-08 Privacy of Care (1). Healith care encouniers are not always conducted in auditory
and/or visual privacy. Privacy screens are available, but not always used. During this site
survey, we observed one female inmate sitting on the exam table in her bra, with a male officer
present. There were other instances of inmates being examined while others were in close
proximity in the waiting arez and could cbsarve. The standard is not metl.

Recommended corrective action for Compliance Indicators #1 and #2. Clinical
encounters and discussions should occur in private, without being observed or
overheard, Conducting clinical encounters without privacy can create a disincentive or
barrier to access to care and may discourage patients’ subsequent use of health
services. The RHA should develop an action plan to correct this standard and menitor
the results through the CQIl program. Corrective action is required in order to meet this

standard.

Recommended corrective action for Compliance Indicator #3. Seacurity persennzsl should
cnly be present if the patient peses 2 probable risk to the safety of the health care
professional or others. The RHA should develop 2n action plan to comrect this standard
and moniter the results through the CQI program. Corrective action is required in order
to meet this standard.

J-A-10 Procedure in the Event of an Inmate Death (l). Since the last survey, thers have been
nine inmate deaths; five were reported to be of natural causes and four were reportedly due to
suicide. A death review (administrative and clinical mortality reviews, and psychological
autopsies in the cases of suicide) were completed within 30 days. There were no recorded
recommendations for change as a result of the psychological autopsies. The standard is met.

J-A-11 Grievance Mechanism for Health Complaints (I). The health-related grievance
program is integrated with the formai grievance program. On average, 70-80 health-related
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grievances are filed per month. We found that the grievances had been answered within the
policy's statad ime frame. The standard is met.

- B. MANAGING A SAFE AND HEALTHY ENVIRONMENT

The standards in this secticn addrass the importance of oreventative menitoring of the pnysical plant.
| Health siaff has a crucial roie in identifying issues that could have a negative impact on the healih and
| safety of izcility staff and the inmate population if leff unaddressead.

Standard Specific Findings

J-B-01 Infection Control Program (E). Infection control matiers are addressed at the separate
infection control committee meetings, during the CQl committee mestings, and during the health
staff meetings. Patients with communicable diseases are housad in the infirmary’'s negative air
ilow isolation rooms. Effective ectoparasite control procedures are used to treat infectad
inmates. The areas where health services are provided are inspected monihly for environmental
concerns. Patients with communicable diseases are provided a list of community providers prior

to their discharge. The standard is met.

J-B-02 Patient Safety (1). All sentinel evants and near miss clinical events are reviewed at the
administrative and CQIl meetings. Haalth staff can report errers in a nan-punitive environmant.

The standard is mat.

J-B-03 Staff Safety (). Health staff does not appear to work under safe and sanitary
conditions. Serious deficits in security staff were brought to our attention and appear to put
health staff in questionable situations. For example, during the site survey we were informed
that it was common practice for male inmates to either axpose themselves or masturbate in
front of officers and health siaff at the main jail. This was not reporied at any of the sateilites. At
the time of the survey, the facility was under a federal consent order for overcrowding. The
consent order was broughnt to address both the inmate overcrowding and securily understaffing.

The standard is not met.

Recommended corrective action for Compliance [ndicator #1. Measures to ensurs the
safety of health staff should be undertaken. Staff safefy refers to the health and well-
being of health staif who work in the facility. It is directly related to the adminisirative
practice that assures public safety of the facility. The RHA should proactively work with
security staff to ensure that health staff work in safe conditions. All aspects of the
standard should be addressed by written policy and defined procedures. Acceptabie
dacumentaticn includes: (a) evidence that the RHA has implemented staff safety
systems, and (b) implementation of officer staff fraining to reflect that this standard has
been reviewed and is being implemented. Correciive action is required in order o meet

this standard.

J-B-04 Federal Sexuai Assault Reporting Regulations (i}. Based on observations during the
survey, there are concerns with the facility's compliance with the Prison Rape Elimination Act
(PREA). An interview with the chief indicated that there is a PREA coordinatar. At the time of the
survey, supervisory staff had received the training and thers were plans in place o provide
training to the line staff in the near future. Based on the observations of the NCCHC survey
team (a2 female inmais sitling on the exam fable in her bra in the prasence of a male officer) we
recommend that the PREA coardinator evaluate policies and procedures vs. actual practice in
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the facility, specifically compliance with PREA standard 115.15, Limits to Cross-Gender Viewing
and Searches. The NCCHC Standard (which raquires a written policy and defined procedure) is

met.

J-B-05 Procedure In The Event of a Sexual Assault (1). Victims of sexual assault are referrad
to a community facility for treatment and evidence collection. The standard is mat.

C. PERSONNEL AND TRAINING »

| The standards in this section address the need for a staffing plan adequate to meet the neads of the
inmate population, and apprepriately irained and credentialed health staff. Correctional officers ars to

| have a minimum amount of health-ralated training in arder fo step in during an emergency, if health staff

| is not immediataly available.

Standard Specific Findings

J-C-01 Credentialing (E). Health care persannel who provide services to inmates have current
licenses and other appropriate credentials on file. The credentialing process includes inquiry
regarding sanctions or disciplinary actions of state boards, employers, and the National
Practitioner Data Bank. The standard is met.

J-C-02 Clinical Performance Enhancement (I). The performance of primary care providers is
reviewed at least annually by a professional of at least equal training or discipline; the results
are also shared with the clinicians under review. The standard is met.

J-C-03 Professional Development (E). We confirmed that qualified health care professionals
have the requirad number of continuing education credits; all are current in cardiopulmenary
resuscitation (CPR) training. The standard is met.

J-C-04 Health Training for Correctional Officers (E). Corractional staff has the required
training in mest health-related topics and more than 75 percent are current in CPR training.

However, the officers we interviewed indicated that they had not received biennial training in
suicide prevention. The standard is not met.

Recommended comrective action for Compliance Indicator #12. Correctional officers who
work with inmates snould receive health-related training, including CPR, at least avary
two years. Training should inchide procedurss for suicide prevention, While it is
expectad that 100% of the correctional staff who work with inmates are trained in these
arsas, compliance with this standard requires that 75% of the staff present on each shift
are current in their heaith-related training. Acceptable documentation includes: (a) an
outling of the course (s) content in the topics specified in the standard and the length of
the course (s); and (b) certificates, rosters, or other evidence of attendance of at least
75% of correctional staff who work with inmatss. In order to receive acereditation,
verification that this standard has been met is raquired.

J-C-05 Medication Administration Training (E). Nurses administer medications. They are
trained in matiers of security, accountability, commen side effects and proper docurmentation.
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However, during the medication administration we observed, that nurses wers not routinely
checking patients’ identification. The standard is not met.

Corrective action is recommended. Comrectienal or health siaff who administer or deliver
prescription medication to inmates should be permittad by state law o do so and should
be trained as needed in matters of security, accountability, common sids effects, and
documentation of adminisiraiion of medicines. The standard requires documentation of
compleied training and testing to be kept on file for staff that adminisier or deliver
medications. This helps to protect the patient's hezlth, ensuring the right drug is
administerad at the right time in the right dose by the right methed to the right patient.
The RHA should develop an action plan to correct this standard and monitor the resuilts
through the CQI program. In erder to receive accreditation, verification that this standard

has been metis required.

J-C-06 Inmate Workers (E). Inmate workers do not provide health services; nor do they clean
up bichazardous spills. The standard is met.

J-C-07 Staffing (). Full-time equivalent haalth staff includes:

Health Services Administrator 16
Medical Director 1.0
Physician 3.0
Physician Assistant 1.0

686

Nurse Practitioner 65
DON 1.0
RN Supervisor 4.2
RN 172
LPN 40.9
X-ray Technician 1.0
Phlebotomist 1.0
Medical Assistant 9.8
Infection Control Coordinator 1.4
Chronic Care Coordinator 1.0
LPN Infection Control 1.0
LPN intake . 1.0
Re-Entry Service Case Manager 3.0
Medical Records Directar 1.0
Medical Records 5.0
Human Resources Coordinator 1.0
Adminisirative Assistant 3.0
Dental Director 1.0
Dentist 18
Oral Surgson 02
Dental Assistant 3.0
Mental Health Dirsctor 1.0
Psychiatrist 2.25

Menta